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DESCRIBE THE PRESEN—f—;\ND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE -

The Joseph.E. Hall House is an example of a Greek Revival build-
ing type referred to as the "temple with wings" or upright and double
wing house. -

The structure of the house involves a very heavy interlocking

and pinned wood frame with 10" square posts and sills; 2% by 6" studs,

15" o.c.; 3 by 4" diagonal wall braces; and 23 by 10" joists, 15" o.c.
This frame is covered with one-inch thick pine horizontal siding, ton-
gue and groove on the front elevation and on the gable ends of the

wings (for smooth, ashlar appearance) and lap sided elsewhere,

The upright portion of the house has a gable roof with ridgepole

perpendicular to the street,” The wings are gabled and are oriented
perpendicular to the upright.

Domiﬂating the front of the building, corresponding in width to
the upright, is a two-story Tonic porch with four, fluted columns;
tall entablature and shallow pediment. The front wall of the upright
possesses four two-story pilasters, molded and embellished, which har-
monize with the columns in front. Pilasters also adorn the wings,
on corners and in intermediate position, and are seen to appear on
the side walls of the upright, above the wings., The pilasters serve
a functional as well as stylistic purpese in that they box in the 10
by 10" posts of the load-bearing structure,

Excepting the historical addition of two modest Victorian porches
fronting the wings and the enclosure and glazing of tha:rear porch,
the exterior éppearance largely éxpresses original construction,

The interior plan includes, on the first floor, an oval entrance
hall traversing the width of the upright and a "great room" behind
this, Completiﬁg the plan on this floor is a drawing room in the east
wing and a dining:: room in the west.

The second floor plan offers a corresponding oval stair hall,

a large bedroom positioned above the "great room," and the attic of

the wings. Exanination of the floor of the large bedroom indicates

firan
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that it had at some time in the past (though probably not originally)
been partitioned, furnishing a front hall, behind the stair hall, and
two smaller rooms. In 1977 the attic areas above the wings were adapted
to functional use as a bath (west) and auxiliary bedroom. This work
involved lowering their floors 14" - enough to provide needed head room
without sacrificing the spatial atmosphere of the rooms below,

The basement plan includes a large kitchen beneath the "great =~
room," a finished room beneath the east wing and an unfinished basemeni
area beneath the west wing. AshinET e

There are several ul interior features. The oval entrance
hall has a steep winding staircase with cherry handrail, graceful spindles
and volute, Fireplaces, with original mantles, are found on the end
walls of both wings and the front wall of the "great room" (ist floor

| - plan); on the front wall of the master bedroom; and in the basement; — - ~ -

a large cooking fireplace in the kitchen and also a fireplace on the
‘ end wall of the east room.

The east parlor, or drawing room, features a Greek Revival mantle;
built-in cupboards with glazed doors (mullioned consistent with the
treatment of attic windows of wing gables and rear pediment); and matéhing

heavy casing on windows, cupboards and doors,

The dining room has a wooden mantlepiece, built-in cupboards, and
chairrail, _

The"greal room" offers an exceptionally well-preserved ornamental
molded plaster ceiling of classical design with central plaster medallion,
This room has a marble -mantlepiece and built-in glazed cupboards,

\ The house possesses a great measure of integrity of fabric with

the interior plan unaltered excepting the recent partitioning of a
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small closet and a powder room at the rear of the drawing room and

a small kitchen at the rear of the dining room and the lowering of

attic floors mentioned earlier. It should be mentioned, however, that
this partitioning -was undertaken with sensitive regard for the original -
decor,-to the extent. that new trim reproduced ithe antique model as
required,- Many windows, as one would expect, had been replaced in -
the-course of time with, -in many cases,; larger -sash=installed,=1In =
some instances window openings had been ungainly-énlargeds-—In the—-
current work these are being rebuilt to appropriate size,

The Joseph -E, Hall House stands on 135.2 perches of land (see
enclosed boundary description). This parcel of land has an integrity
of its own, being established in the J., S. King to R. J. Nicholson .
transaction of 1871, -

Two. small outbuildings share the property and are contemporaneous - .
with the house,- First; there is a- two-story board and batten outbuild-~--—
ing connected to the rear elevation of the west wing, This building
was originally separate but some years ago the south wall of this wing
was removed and a link esablished to the outbuilding., In the current
re%@ration,(1977—) the remoVed wall has been reconstructed and the
connecting construction is to be removed. Secondly, there is a hipped
roof board and_batten, double-wall ice house stﬁnding south of the
outbuilding, aligned with it and proportioned to it., A wooden vent
projectsvfrom the peak of the ice house roof.

The Jqﬁseph—E; Hall House stands in an excellent state of preser----
vation. The cu}rent work will prepare the house for single family
rental (1st and 2nd story) and for possible office use (basement plan),
The work is fundamentally a restoration with necessary adaptations

kept consistent with the character and detailing of the original,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Joseph E. Hall House (c. 1848) ié one of few superb examples
‘ of the Greek Revival "temple with wings" house available in mid-western
and north-central Pennsylvania, This area, settled relatively late
‘ and in large measure by inmigration from the gpr?%_gnd’gast,’wés‘ébhiey?qg o
its initial period of prosperity in the Greek Revival era. Jefferson
County developed at this time as an important lumbering area under the
‘ influence of expertise and capital of experienced lumbermen and lumber
companies from New York state and New England. The Hall House expresses
| a sound understanding of Greek Revival design (undoubtedly based on
builders guides) and a wholehearted acceptance of the style. Its crafts-
manship and sturdy construction seem appropriate to its location in
a thriving lumbering region., Finally, the Hall House served as resldence
for some of Brookville"s most prominent citizens and entrepreneurs,
establishing it as a place of distinction, both architecturally and in
point of residency. | '
The proieotype for the comprehensive classicism of the Hall House
could very be Minard Lafever's "Design for a Couhtry Villa" published

as a frontispiece or cover of his The Modern Builders Guide of 1833

(reproduced in American Builders and their Architects, Volume 1, Figure

322). The Lafever design compares cIosely to the general appearance
and configuration of the Hall House, offering a shallow-pedimented four
| Post portico; centralized entrance; two-bay wings; and oval entrance
hall with staircase winding counter-clockwise at the right of the en-
trance, ‘
A pertinent, regional comparison is afforded by the Timothy Ives
House (1843) in Coudersport, Potter County (reproduced in Dickson, p.51
and in Stotz, p. 142), While Potter County is bordered on the north
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by the New York state line and thus more likely influenced by the New
York and New England culture regions(which more fully adopted Greek
Revival than did Pennsylvania)- nonetheless, the Ives House displays
more local adaptation of pure neo-Greek design (asymmetrical entrance,
steeper\roof slope, lesser use of matched siding for smooth appearance).
On the whole, however, the effect is similar and as Professor Dickson
indicates "if it carries something of the air of a playéouse pretending
to manorial magnitude, does also its prim reserve convey a sense of
genteel and orderly living" (Dickson, 1954, p. 51).

Jefferson County was established in 1830 with Brookville laid out
as the county seat, In the same year a contract was drawn up for cons-
truction which routed the Waterford ahd Susquehanna Turnpike (incorporated,
1817) into the town. Brookville's Main Street thus became a link in
this major east-west highway. The Hall House was built along this thoro-
fare with the turnpike bounding the property on one side,

Throughout much of the 19th century the county's principal business
was lumbering. The period 1830-37 was a boom era for the lumber trade
but the business prospered long thereafter, Joseph E, Hall was one
of the foremost local lumbermen,

Hall's father, a stone mason, brought the family from (then) Lycoming
County in 1827, when Joseph was about 9 years of age. In his early
manhood, Joseph embarked upon a very successful career both lumbering
and merchandizing. In September of 1848 Joseph paid Octavius Pickering
$200 for the approximately one acre plot from which the present tract
derives, County assessment records indicate that the house was completed
(at the latest) by 1851 or '52, The 1850 U. S. Census lists the value of
the Hall property as $3500 (a sure indication of a house) and enumerates
the family as follows: Joseph E. Hall, 32, male, Lumbermani Elizabeth, 29, f.;
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Melissa, 7, f.; Emma, 4, f,; Gilbert S., 2, m.; Clara J., 1 mo., f.; and
Mary E. Sloan, 16, f. (possibly a servant).

In 1855 Hall entered into a partnership with Edward H. Darrah,
scion of a New England lumbering family, for the purpose of manufacturing
squared timber products. This partnership lasted eight years, In 1866
Hall sold his home to J. S. King and soon ﬂ%rgqfégﬁ»;e@oyed to Paxton,

T1linois where he died in 1885, Hall's brother, Enoch, eight years his .
elder and a cabinetmaker remained in Brookville and, throughout his
1life, was engaged in lumbering and merchandizing.

Following Hall's departure the house served as principal residence
to a sucession of important local figures, John S. King, occupant from
1866 to 1871, was a merchandizer and was cashier and board member of
the Brookville Bank from its inception in 1866 until its closing in
1874,

King sold the property to Robert J. Nicholson, one of the most
active lumbermen of his era. Nicholson occupied the Hall House until
his death in 1884 (Bulogies at this time in the local press demonstrate
how closely Nicholson was identified with the econonmic interests of
the area, how greatly he was respected and beloved as a public spirited
citizen and paternalistic employer. A Reverend T, Henderson wrote that
the "businéss places of town closed during the hour of the funeral and
the bell at the Court House of his chosen county was tolled as an ex-
Pression of the loss in his death, as a public calamity,'"- Brookville .
Democrat, March 5, 1884), :

In‘1885 the house became the residence of Richard Arthurs, Sz,

(1811-92), Arthurs was one of the early settlers in the county and ‘.
was her first district attorney. He was cashier of the 1st National '
Bank in Brookville during its entire existence (1865-74) and by virtue
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of his various enterprises became one of the wealthiest men in the county.
The property remained in the Arthurs family until 195 when it

was deeded for the purpose of a public library, the Rebecca M. Arthurs

Memorial Library. The library has now moved to new quarters and the

present owner, Dr. Wm, Mark McKinley is restoring the Hall House to

residential use.
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~ Boundary Description (Cited from Jefferson County Deed Book 437/794)

Beginning at a post on the South line of Main Street (formerly known

as the Waterford and Susquehanna Turnpike) on NW corner of said premises,
thence N 48° E along Main Street 140.2 feet to a post, thence S 9040' W
along the land of Mabel McKinley, formerly John McCracken Hotel and

land of U. S. of America, formerly Robert Moore a distance of 299 feet
to a post, thence N80°W along the North boundary of Madison Avenue a
distance of 136 feet to a post, thence N10°50'E along land of William
Darr and land of James Long 250' to a post.
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